
ALBEMARLE COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 
September 28, 2015: County Office Building, McIntire Rd., Room 241, 4:30 pm 

 

MINUTES   UPDATE  
 

 
Committee Member Name 

 
Present 

 
Absent 

  

1. Erika Castillo x  

2. Katie Collins  X 

3. Dennis Dutterer x  

4. Ed Lay x  

5. Jared Loewenstein x  

6. Steven G. Meeks  x 

7. Liz Russell x  

8. Ross Stevens  x 

9. Jeff Werner  x 

10. Peter Wiley x  

11.    

12.    

    

Liaison Name  

Ann Mallek, BOS  x 

Rick Randolph, PC x  

   

On Leave  

   

   

Visitor Name/Contact Information  

JT Newberry  

  
 
 

1. Call meeting to order: The chair called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM with a quorum. 

 

2. Announcements  

 Next Meeting: October 26, 2015 

 New member Crystal Ptacek should start at the October meeting.  She is an archaeologist who 

works at Monticello. 

 

3. Approval of Minutes    

P. Wiley made a motion to approve the August minutes. Second by Liz Russell.  Minutes approved 

unanimously. 

 

 

 



 

4. Discussion Items 

J.T. Newberry, planner in the Department of Community Development, discussed a potential new 

use in the Rural Areas for Artist Communities and the related Zoning Text Amendment that is 

under review. The Planning Commission would like input from the Committee on how this could 

further preservation goals.  Questions related to the proposal were reviewed (see attached).  L. 

Russell pointed out that reversibility is a key factor when evaluating the goals. R. Randolph 

pointed out that crossroads communities would be appropriate locations for the use because 

groups could use existing structures.  Scale and landscaping may be issues. Could limit only to 

use of existing structures. J. Loewenstein concluded the discussion by asking that all members be 

sent the document and that the group will be ready to discuss with J.T. Newberry at the October 

meeting. 

   

 

5. Work Group Updates 

 Manual Update: J. Loewenstein is nearly complete with the final edits of the manual.  It 

should be ready before our next meeting.  

 

6. Questions 

 At the October 7 Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board will receive the Committee’s 

annual update. 

 The PAPA annual meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 8 at Montpelier.  

 

8.  Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 5:25PM 

 

 

  



 



 



 



 



 



 



ALBEMARLE COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 
October 26, 2015: County Office Building, McIntire Rd., Room 241, 4:30 pm 

 

MINUTES   UPDATE  
 

 
Committee Member Name 

 
Present 

 
Absent 

  

1. Erika Castillo x  

2. Katie Collins  x 

3. Dennis Dutterer x  

4. Ed Lay  x 

5. Jared Loewenstein, Chair x  

6. Steven G. Meeks x  

7. Crystal Ptacek x  

8. Liz Russell  x 

9. Ross Stevens x  

10. Jeff Werner x  

11. Peter Wiley  x 

12.    

    

Liaison Name  

Ann Mallek, BOS x  

Rick Randolph, PC x  

   

On Leave  

   

   

Visitor Name/Contact Information  

JT Newberry, Albemarle County Planning  

Greg Smith, VCCA  
 
 

1. Call meeting to order: J. Loewenstein called the meeting to order at 4:20 PM with a quorum. 

 

2. Announcements  

 Welcome new member: J. Loewenstein welcomed Crystal Ptacek to the Committee and Greg 

Smith with VCCA to the meeting. 

 Next Meeting: November 23, 2015 

 

3. Approval of Minutes    

J. Werner made a motion to approve the September minutes. Second by D. Dutterer.  Minutes 

approved unanimously. 

 

 

 



 

4. Discussion Items 

J.T. Newberry, planner in the Department of Community Development, led a continued discussion on 

the potential new use in the Rural Areas for Artist Communities and the related Zoning Text 

Amendment that is under review.  

 

 J. Werner noted that the ordinance would be available to anyone, not just this particular applicant, 

but wondered if the requirements would be so specific that it wouldn’t work for any property. Is 

the scope too limited? He suggested that the TJ scholars’ residence be used as an example. 

 A. Mallek noted that Monticello would not have been able to build the visitors center without the 

zoning change (creation of Chap. 18, Section 11: Monticello Historic District). 

 J.T. Newberry asked question #1 in his handout regarding eligibility criteria. 

 The group suggested that “eligibility” should be better defined to clearly state that eligibility is a 

VDHR decision. 

 R. Randolph asked if the bar should be lowered to just 50 years old. 

 Stillhouse Mountain was offered as an example. 

 Members of the group suggested that the overall site should be considered, not just a historic 

building (but clarified that only sites with historic structures should be eligible). Blocking views 

with new construction would be inappropriate. Important landscape features should be preserved. 

 D. Dutterer stated that the proposal is not related to preserving historic resources. 

 R. Stevens noted that many National Register properties are in conservation easements, so they 

could not take advantage of the proposed ordinance change.  

 Members of the group were opposed to the concept that the proposal is trying to make it possible 

to do something in a historic structure that isn’t allowed anywhere else. It is wrong to zero in on 

historic properties. “The proposal is simply using the notion of ‘historic preservation’ as a hook.” 

 But there probably won’t be many applications made. How many would it really be? Can some 

research be done? Can a list be made? 

 We must carefully define “artist community” to prevent it from being exploited for other uses or 

from being interpreted too widely. 

 Limit to the primary historic structure (residence or similar) – not a minor shed or other 

outbuilding. Limit to a certain size structure? 

 Members noted that a historic designation status can change. Upon further review, the status can 

be removed. A potential SP condition should be that the site has to retain its historic status in 

order for the use to continue. An affirmative finding by VDHR should be required before the 

application is considered. 

 Consider the UVA Morven example. 

 Consider the case of Berry Hill near South Boston, VA. It is now a lodging/dining/special events 

center that dramatically and negatively impacted one of the best examples of Greek Revival 

architecture in the nation. 

 Consider like a B&B, school, or camp? 

 J. Newberry asked question #2 in his handout regarding assistance the HPC could provide the PC, 

noting that staff envisions the HPC examining requests under this provision to determine if the 

proposal undermines the historic character/significance of the property. 

 The committee members agreed that HPC input on individual requests would be important. 

 How much new construction would be appropriate in relation to historic? The concern was 

expressed: “How much ‘old’ versus how much ‘new’ would be permitted on the site? Massing 

and visibility are important considerations for how much ‘new’ is permitted.  

 A review for compatibility would be needed. 

http://www.berryhillresort.com/index.php?layout=edit&id=32


 J. Werner - Would need to establish criteria for maintenance. This would require monitoring by 

the county, which would not be easy. J. Loewenstein asked: Is this really enforceable? 

 C. Ptacek noted that the conversation was focused on structures, but any new construction could 

impact below-ground resources. Archaeological survey may be required. J. Loewenstein noted 

that good criteria for preservation and construction (including below-ground resources) already 

exist and should be used as examples for drafting a new ordinance. 

 R. Stevens noted that this would really be adaptation, not preservation. The impact of any viable 

Artist Community use (construction of parking lots, new structures for residents, etc.) would 

outweigh the preservation taking place.  

 How could you adapt a house to accommodate 30 people without negative impact to the historic 

resource? The impact would be disproportionate and contrary to the resource. Should we be going 

there at all?  

 A. Mallek suggested that the second bullet under eligibility should be eliminated. 

 Greg Smith with VCCA thanked the HPC for considering this complex issue. He summarized his 

position, noting VCCA’s current location and accommodations in a converted 1930s dairy barn 

on Sweetbriar property, which accommodates 25 artists. He also noted that the residential part is 

a challenge, individual bathrooms are desired. 

 It was suggested that the use could be made by SP in the RA, but not just limited to historic 

resources. Make it apply to a broader category. If a historic property does happen to be proposed, 

involve the HPC for an added layer of review. 

 J. Newberry noted that the genesis of the Comp Plan language was to encourage historic 

preservation. 

 J. Werner summarized the discussion points as follows: 

o Define historic resource and historic structure 

o Designation is a function of eligibility (VDHR and NRHP). Loss of eligibility makes 

the use invalid. 

o Some range of new construction might be acceptable. 

o Establish design parameters; some level of design review would be needed. 

o Address maintenance/upkeep – ensure no unapproved changes are made. 

 The historic preservation concern shouldn’t trump other Rural Area policies/issues (i.e., 

development rights, etc.). 

 The discussion can continue next month. 

 What about building code issues? New Jersey has some good examples of rehabilitative building 

codes. 

     

5. Work Group Updates 

 Manual Update: J. Loewenstein reported that the manual editing has been completed. We will be 

moving into the process of getting the manual on line.  

 

6. Other Items 

 J. Werner asked A. Mallek for BOS assistance in obtaining information from VDOT on the 

process for acquiring and installing the brown “you have just entered XYZ Historic District” 

signs. 

 

8.  Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 6:02 PM. 

 

 

  



 



 



ALBEMARLE COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 
November 23, 2015: County Office Building, McIntire Rd., Room 241, 4:30 pm 

 
MINUTES     
 

 
Committee Member Name 

 
Present 

 
Absent 

  

1. Erika Castillo x  

2. Katie Collins  x 

3. Dennis Dutterer  x 

4. Ed Lay x  

5. Jared Loewenstein, Chair x  

6. Steven G. Meeks  x 

7. Crystal Ptacek x  

8. Liz Russell  x 

9. Ross Stevens  x 

10. Jeff Werner x  

11. Peter Wiley  x 

12.    

    

Liaison Name  

Ann Mallek, BOS x  

Rick Randolph, PC x  

   

On Leave  

   

   

Visitor Name/Contact Information  

JT Newberry, Rachel Falkenstein, Elaine 
Echols, Albemarle County Planning 

 

Greg Smith, VCCA  
 
 
1. Call meeting to order: J. Loewenstein called the meeting to order at 4:39 PM without a quorum. 
 
2. Announcements  

 Next Meeting: Some Committee members present indicated that they would not be able to 
attend the December 28 meeting, so the group decided that the meeting should be cancelled. 
The next meeting is scheduled for January 25, 2016. It will be the Committee’s organizational 
meeting.  

 J. Loewenstein reported that Dennis Dutterer has asked for a leave of absence beginning now 
and lasting until Spring. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes    



 

 No action was taken on the minutes due to the lack of a quorum. 
 
4. Discussion Items 

 Elaine Echols made a presentation on ZTA amendments related to Historic Preservation to give 
the Committee additional context to the Artist Communities request that was discussed in the 
two previous meetings. 

 J. Loewenstein questioned the definition of “historic” in this discussion. He noted that the 
County doesn’t decide on eligibility - the state and feds do. If a building is 50 years old and it has 
some architectural merit and some historic associative merit, we send the new owner letter. It 
doesn’t mean much because we don’t have a local ordinance.  

 E. Echols said that the ordinance states that historic inns and landmarks must be identified in 
the Comp Plan, and the Comp Plan says that means the resource is listed in the state or national 
registers. She asked if it should be that eligibility, or some other eligibility for the ZTA. 

 J. Loewenstein said this determination would have to include sites as well as structures, and 
historic landscapes must be taken into account. Of the properties in question, one or both have 
significant sites. 

 The “parameters” point is a good one. Not everyone in the group has had to deal with this sort 
of consideration before. 

 J. Loewenstein said he would stay away from the economic benefit issue. It is a double-edged 
sword. It is difficult to gauge the degree of economic benefit. It will be hard for the HPC to get 
involved in that. 

 EE replied that the HPC won’t be asked to get involved in that. – only HP issues. 

 The percentage of change allowable will be application specific. There are state and federal 
standards - using those would be helpful. 

 A. Mallek said that doing anything that changes eligibility wouldn’t be allowed. 

 J. Werner said sites and structures are not interchangeable. Explain to the PC and BOS what 
historic designation does and does not do. It isn’t like an easement. No one from DHR monitors 
this. What is DHR’s willingness to stand up on a land use issue? 

 E. Lay said if the PC didn’t attach the word “historic” to the issue, the HPC wouldn’t be involved. 
There are many buildings in this community that could be restored that are older but not 
historic. Why attach it to historic? 

 J. Loewenstein asked why this use is only to be considered for historic structures. A. Mallek 
responded that it might have economic value for historic resources.  

 The HPC was brought in too late. R. Randolph explained that the PC didn’t settle on a way to 
have this occur until the third time through, noting at that time that the only way it would be 
workable was if there was a historic building component. Then they said it needs to go to the 
HPC.  Reversion was a major stumbling block. The HPC isn’t late. This is the only viable way to go 
from an applicant’s perspective. 

 A. Mallek said that transient lodging separate from the main house might help maintain historic 
structures like barns, carriage house, etc., that can be a financial burden to some owners. No 
one is stepping up to help maintain those structure. That is the economic benefit. How can we 
help these things stand up? If it isn’t appropriate - OK. 

 G. Smith stated that this is not an application for Casa Maria, but an effort for the organization 
to move back into Albemarle County. 



 Why must this go to the PC on December 15? E. Echols stated that Mr. Smith has been waiting 
for a while. We must get to the PC to report on the status, and then to the BOS to see if they 
want to prioritize this work. If the HPC wants more time, we can report that. 

 J. Loewenstein stated that reversion is a major consideration. Water use, septic, traffic, etc. 
must also be considered in terms of the larger use. Those issues should be solved before the 
ZTA. E. Echols stated that the PC will vet those issues. J. Loewenstein stated that if there are 
negative factors in the SUP that can’t be overcome, why bother with the ZTA? 

 J. Werner noted the importance of development rights. We don’t want HP to be the sugar that 
sweetens this. There were lots of questions in our previous discussion, for example, about 
historic chicken coops and barns. 

 EE said that it sounds like there is no consensus of opinion. Does the committee need more 
time? Can you say you believe it is or isn’t an appropriate use for a historic structure?  

 J. Werner asked what is the definition of the use? Is it a house being converted to 30 bedrooms? 
Is it in the historic building or in an addition to the building?  

 J. Loewenstein asked if we can modify the existing use definition to allow this applicant to come 
in without going through all of this? 

 A. Mallek said a summer camp with extra layers to protect historic structures was considered. 

 R. Randolph said the trick is fitting this into the rural area in the county and he is not yet 
convinced it will fit. Scottsville may work. He is not seeing many opportunities that make this 
workable. 

 J. Werner asked if we can revise the SP section to say if historic is involved, seek input from HPC. 

 E. Lay asked if can we put this back to the PC to remove the historic component? The Comp Plan 
says “historic structure”. This would have to go back to the BOS.  

 J. Loewenstein stated that the economic benefit isn’t likely to be significant.  

 J. Werner said there is more to this discussion. The last discussion offered reasonable questions. 

 J. Loewenstein suggested we go back to Anne’s notes. End up with a suggestion to revise the 
Comp Plan to make the use possible in the RA or historic property part taken out. Or we need 
more time.  

 J. Loewenstein suggested clarifying that we are not endorsing this use. We don’t know enough 
about the use. Our role is to decide if this is the way to address it. 

 E. Echols asked how the Committee feels about additions/expansions to historic structures. 

 E. Castillo said it runs right up against the requirements of DHR.   

 E. Echols said now you can have the use but you can’t expand. The Secretary of the Interior 
allows expansion. Should that be a consideration?  

 J. Werner asked is it a house large enough?  

 E. Echols asked what if there is more than one house on a single parcel? 

 J. Werner said it would be like a cluster subdivision - converting barns and stables into dwelling 
units. Is there an existing property with enough structures? 

 E. Lay said there are two different issues – restaurant and artist community.  

 E. Echols said it sounds like you believe there should be an opportunity to change the exterior if 
in keeping with the Secretary of the Interiors standards and if it does not affect eligibility. 

 G. Smith said this is a hard subject to discuss because there is no artist community in the county. 
He invited the committee to VCCA to see what the use is. The HP concept arose to try to find a 
greater good for this particular use. Can you protect a larger tract of property, the historic 
parameter of the property, by requiring it be maintained for this use? Casa Maria is 60 acres. 
You could have 12 houses there instead. We need to have that discussion. 



 J. Werner said you could put the land in conservation easement or the structure under a facade 
easement. Our local zoning does not protect the historic structure. 

 The HP issue is complicating this to the level that it is not fair to the application. 

 The historic aspect is a burden for the Committee and applicant. 

 E. Echols summarized: it is a difficult, more complex issue because of the use being tied to HP; if 
there are additional uses allowed, ensure integrity of the site isn’t damaged; this might be 
possible; someone will need to review changes for historic impact; the Secretary’s Standards are 
broad. 

 DHR isn’t required to do this review for us. 

 There needs to be a body reviewing the change.  

 We can identify problematic issues for the PC. There are a few things the HPC agrees on. 

 Is it appropriate for the Rural Areas? Is it appropriate for historic resource in the Rural Areas? 

 It would help if you could give specific examples of properties and buildings to help visualize the 
request and the impact. 

 
5. Work Group Updates 

 M. Maliszewski reported that a meeting has been scheduled with J. Lewis to begin work on moving 
the draft manual to the HPC’s web page. 
 

6. Other Items 

 J. Loewenstein mentioned the Mountain Grove auction scheduled for December 11 in Schuyler. 
Previews are scheduled for November 28 and 29 and the following two weekends from noon to 
4. The location is 7375 Secretary Sand Road. E. Lay added that this is a very special building – a 
Palladian brick tripartite form, the oldest in area.  

 J. Werner reported that he is in contact with the sign rep for VDOT and will talk with him next 
week about the possibility of installing the brown “Welcome to XXX historic district” signs in the 
county. The contact is Jason Newcomb with Interstate Logos. 

 J. Werner reported that a coworker found a Walker Family cemetery on a piece of Gilbert 
Station land while studying it for a conservation. J. Werner has talked to Steve Thompson and 
Cinder Stanton about it. It is an African American family cemetery. Members noted that several 
counties are attempting to locate and document such cemeteries: Fluvanna, Prince William, 
Fauquier. J. Werner noted that there is not mention of cemeteries, burial grounds, etc. in the 
Comp Plan.  
 

8.  Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 6:05 PM. 

 


